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HEAR NG RE: CELLCQO VERI ZON
APRIL 25, 2013 (3:00 PM

. Verbati m proceedi ngs of a hearing
before the State of Connecticut Siting Council in the
matter of an application by Cellco Partnership d/b/a
Verizon Wreless, held at the West Hartford Town Hall, 50
South Main Street, West Hartford, Connecticut, on April
25, 2013 at 3:00 p.m, at which time the parties were

represented as hereinbefore set forth .

CHAI RVAN ROBI N STEIN:  CGood afternoon
| adies and gentlenen. 1'd like -- I'd like to call to
order the Siting Council Meeting on Docket 434 today,
Thursday, April 25, 2013 at exactly 3:00 p.m M nane
is Robin Stein, Chairman of the Connecticut Siting
Counci | .

O her nenbers of the Council present are
Prof essor Tait, Vice Chairman; M. Hannon, the designee
fromthe Departnent of Energy and Environnental
Protection; Director Carron, the designee fromthe Public
Uilities Regulatory Authority; M. Ashton; M. Lynch;
Dr. Bell; and Senator Mirphy.

Menbers of the staff present are Attorney
Bachman, our staff attorney; M. Perrone, our Siting

Anal yst; Gail Gegoriades, our court reporter, and Aaron
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DeMar est, our audi o technician.

This hearing is held pursuant to the
provisions of Title 16 of the Connecticut Ceneral
Statutes and of the Uniform Adm ni strative Procedure Act
upon an application fromCellco Partnership d/b/a Verizon
Wreless for a Certificate of Environnental Conpatibility
and Public Need for the construction, maintenance, and
operation of a relocated tel econunications facility at
139 North Main Street in West Hartford, Connecticut. The
application was received by the Council on January 18,
2013.

As a remnder to all, any off-the-record
communi cation with a nenber of the Council or a nenber of
the Council staff upon the nerits of this application is
prohi bited by | aw

The parties and intervenors of the
proceedings are as follows: Cellco Partnership, Attorney
Bal dwi n; and New C ngul ar Wreless, Attorney Chiocchio

W will proceed in accordance with the
prepared agenda, copies of which are avail able on the
table there. Al so available are copies of the Council’s
Ctizen's Guide to Siting Council Procedures.

At the end of this afternoon’s session, we

will recess and then we will resune here at 7:00 p. m
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The 7:00 p.m hearing will be reserved for the public to
make brief oral statenments into the record. And | w sh
to note that the parties and intervenors are not all owed
to participate in the public coment session

| also wish to note for those who are here
and for the benefit of your friends and nei ghbors who may
be unable to join us for the public session, that you or
they may send witten statenents to the Council within 30
days of this date. And such witten statenents will be
gi ven the sanme weight as if spoken at the hearing.

| f necessary, party and intervenor
presentations may continue after the public coment
sessi on.

A verbatimtranscript will be nmade of this
hearing and deposited with the Town erk’s Ofice in
West Hartford for the convenience of the public.

Are there any public officials here who
want to make a public statenent? Ckay.

W don’t have any notions, do we? No.
Adm nistrative notice, | want to -- or wwsh to call your
attention to those itens shown on the hearing program
mar ked as Roman Nuneral 1-D, Itens 1 through 55. Does
the Applicant or any party or intervenor have any

objection to these itens that the Council has
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adm nistratively noticed? Hearing and seei ng none,
accordingly the Council hereby admnistratively notices
t hese existing docunents and statenents.

WIIl the Applicant present its wtness
panel for the purposes of taking the oath. And the
Council staff attorney will adm nister the oath.

MR. KENNETH C. BALDW N  Good afternoon,
M. Chairman. Kenneth Baldwin with Robinson and Col e on
behal f of the Applicant Verizon Wreless.

W have a little bit shorter bench today
than we normal ly have at these proceedings. Qur wtness
panel consists of, to ny far left, M. Carlo Centore a
Pr of essi onal Engi neer wth Centek Engineeri ng,
| ncorporated. To ny imediate left is Sandy Carter, a
Regul at ory Manager with Verizon Wreless. To ny right is
M. Mark Brauer, a Radi o Frequency Engi neer with Verizon
Wreless. And to M. Brauer’s right is M chael
Li bertine, LEP, and the Director of Siting and Permtting
for All Points Technol ogy Corporation. | offer themto
be sworn at this tine.

CHAI RVAN STEIN:  If you' d pl ease rise.

MS. MELANI E BACHVAN:. Pl ease rai se your
ri ght hand.

(Wher eupon, the Applicant’s w tness panel
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was duly sworn in.)

M5. BACHVAN.  Thank you.

MR, BALDWN. M. Chairman, we have eight
exhibits listed in the hearing programunder Roman |1 -B,
Itens 1 through 8, and | offer themat this tine for
identification purposes subject to verification by our
W t ness panel .

CHAI RVAN STEIN: |s there any objection at
this point? WIIl you proceed by verifying the exhibits.

MR. BALDWN  Thank you, M. Chairman. |If
| could ask ny witness panel to respond. D d you
prepare, assist in or supervise the preparation of the
exhibits listed in the hearing prograns of Itens 1
t hrough 8 under Roman 11, Section B? M. Centore?

CARLO CENTORE: | did.

3

BALDAWN. Ms. Carter?

SANDY CARTER  Yes, | did.
BALDWN. M. Brauer?

MARK BRAUER:  Yes.

BALDWN. M. Libertine?

M CHAEL LIBERTINE: Yes, | did.

233335 3

BALDWN:. Do you have any corrections,
anendnents, or nodifications to offer to any of those

exhibits? M. Centore?
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MR. CENTORE: | do not.

MR BALDWN. Ms. Carter?

M5. CARTER No, | do not.

MR, BALDWN. M. Brauer?

MR. BRAUER No, | do not.

MR. BALDWN M. Libertine?

MR LI BERTI NE: No.

MR. BALDWN Alright. And is the

information contained in those exhibits true and accurate

to the best of your know edge? M. Centore?

MR. CENTORE: Yes, it is.

MR BALDWN. Ms. Carter?

M5. CARTER  Yes.

MR, BALDWN. M. Brauer?

MR BRAUER  Yes.

MR. BALDWN M. Libertine?

MR LI BERTI NE: Yes.

MR, BALDWN. And do you adopt the

information in those exhibits as your testinony for

today’ s proceeding? M. Centore?

MR CENTORE: | do.

MR BALDWN. Ms. Carter?
M5. CARTER  Yes.

MR, BALDWN. M. Brauer?
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MR, BRAUER  Yes.

MR. BALDWN M. Libertine?

MR LIBERTINE: Yes, | do.

MR. BALDWN M. Chairman, | offer them
as full exhibits.

CHAI RVAN STEIN:.  Are there any objections
to these being admtted into the record? Hearing and
seei ng none, the exhibits are hereby admtted.

(Wher eupon, Applicant Exhibit Nos. 1
t hrough 8 were received into the record as full
exhibits.)

CHAI RVAN STEIN: W will now proceed with
cross-examnation. M. Perrone.

MR. M CHAEL PERRONE: Thank you, M.
Chai r man.

When was the original search ring
devel oped? Was that prior to Petition 3077

MR. BRAUER  That particul ar one was the
original site approval for the existing site there now.

MR, PERRONE: Do you know roughly what
year that was?

MR, BRAUER It was 1993 | believe.

MR. PERRONE: Ckay. In tab -- under Tab 8

of the application Cellco has the four alternative sites
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and it nmentions that they would not have the hei ght that
the proposed relocated facility would have. So is it
correct to say that none of those four alternatives woul d
nmeet your objectives?

MR. BRAUER  Yes, that’s correct. W took
a |l ook at those four and determned that they woul dn’t
provi de the sane coverage that we woul d have | ost at the
facility now had it been taken down -- or as a
repl acenent for that facility.

MR. PERRONE: At today’'s field review we
al so saw a snoke stack on the existing property. D d
Cellco ook at that also as an alternative?

M5. CARTER  Yes, Cellco did |look at that,
but the snoke stack is going to be renoved as well as the
bui | di ng.

MR. PERRONE: Ckay. On the existing
Galludet Hall, howtall is the existing spire on top of
t hat done?

MR. CENTORE: |1'mgoing to see if | can
find that information for you. | don’t have it readily
avai | abl e.

MR. BALDWN M. Perrone, are you talking
about just the spire itself?

MR PERRONE: Yes.

POST REPORTI NG SERVI CE
HAMDEN, CT (800) 262-4102



© 00 N o o -~ wWw N Pk

N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N O O B W N +—» O

11
HEARI NG RE: CELLCO VERI ZON
APRIL 25, 2013 (3:00 PM

MR CENTORE: It’s --

MR. BRAUER W have the height of the
donme already. W’re just |looking for the spire --

MR CENTORE: It’s 15 feet.

MR. PERRONE: Ckay, thank you. Has Cellco
recei ved any comments or feedback fromthe Town of West
Hartford regarding this proposal ?

M5. CARTER No, we have not.

MR. PERRONE: Ckay. Also regarding the
nature of the site, | understand it’s in front of a grass
area. Is -- is that used for sports, |ike soccer or --
that field right behind the tower?

MR LIBERTINE: There is a soccer field,
excuse nme, on the lower tier, but where we are proposing
IS just an open grass space.

MR. PERRONE: Ckay. As far as the
proposed relocated facility would the spire also act as a
lightning rod or is it there nostly for aesthetics?

MR CENTORE: It would be part of the
lightning protection system but it is an aesthetic
or nanent .

MR. PERRONE: Ckay. As far as the
visibility of the spire is there a certain distance away

where it would kind of fade into the sky where you
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wouldn’t really see it?

MR LIBERTINE: There is a point at which
the spire does becone nore or less -- | won't say
invisible, but it really is not a feature that can be
picked out. 1’d say generally as you nove off the
property -- as you can see, it’'s a narrow parcel that
goes fairly deep and there are nei ghborhoods on either
side. Wen we were doing our assessnents, we had taken a
| ook at that and we found that approximately in the
nei ghbor hood of about a quarter-mle away, it does tend
to just kind of drop into the background. And | woul d
say that is probably one street over on either side is
about that relative distance.

MR. PERRONE: Ckay. Wat color would it
be? Do you know?

MR LIBERTINE: It’s essentially going to
be done exactly to replicate what's there today.

MR PERRONE: Ckay.

MR, LIBERTINE: Kind of a bronz’ish black
or in between.

MR. PERRONE: Also regarding visibility,
could you describe the view of the proposed facility from
t he nearest hone, which --

MR LIBERTINE: Sure. The -- there's
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really three what 1’1l call primary vi ewsheds associ at ed
with what’s there today and what will be replacing it if
this were to be approved. And essentially, directly
across the street on North Main Street, as you could tell
fromtoday’'s site visit, the existing cupola, excuse ne,
can be seen as you're in front of the school. Those
views are fairly wide open. There is sone |andscapi ng.
Once this particular replication is put about -- it’s
about 300 plus feet to the rear -- it’'s going to have

di stance between it. And you wll also have the new
intervening building. Now the new building is a bit
shorter in terns of its total height -- roof height --
but it’s been designed actually so that the atriumthat’s
being built as a glass atrium-- if you were to be
essentially centered in front of the school, you would be
able to see the new feature right through the gl ass.
Qoviously if you step to either side, you re going to
have kind of a different view, which we’'ve kind of tried
to portray wwth sonme of the renderings here.

Essentially what we found as you go on
either side of the property up the streets, (1) they're
fairly dense packed nei ghborhoods, two-story hones, and
fromthe street you get sone views that are kind of

intermttent between the buildings. Fromtheir backyards
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|’ msure there is -- there is sone | andscapi ng and sone
trees, but -- essentially what we’re doing is we're
shifting that viewscape about three or four hundred feet
to the west. So what we found was that anyone who is
seeing the cupola today is going to see this cupola. It
doesn’t really open up any new views, so the character is
fairly consistent. It’s just it kind of shifts

everything a little bit to the west. D d that answer the

question? | -- | --

MR, PERRONE: Yes --

MR LIBERTINE: -- | kind of went off on a
tangent there -- okay.

MR PERRONE: Absolutely. Do you know
approxi mately when Gl ludet Hall would be -- would cone

down as far as the tineline?

MR LIBERTINE: | had a conversation today
with actually both the director of the -- the Board of
Directors -- excuse ne, the president of the Board of
Directors, and then actually the director of the school.
And they’'re -- the -- the new school is slated to be
opened for August. However, they are using kind of a
broad range of about six to twelve nonths for the
denmolition. They are supposedly securing funding

actually today, and bonding is going to be the next step.
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So they' ' re anticipating within the next twelve nonths
that it will be denolished.

MR. PERRONE: Ckay. So would all the
antennas be internally nounted and thus not visible from
t he outside?

MR CENTORE: Correct.

MR. PERRONE: Ckay. And would the
proposed tower with its backup generator neet the
appl i cabl e noi se standards?

MR CENTORE: Yes, it would.

MR. PERRONE: And -- so generally would it
be correct to say that the equi pnent that woul d generate
noi se, the generator and the air-conditioning, would be
i nside the tower?

MR CENTORE: That’'s correct. Behind the
acoustical |ouvers.

MR. PERRONE: Right. Has the town
expressed an interest in co-locating?

M5. CARTER No, they haven't.

MR. PERRONE: Ckay. Wuld Cellco be
willing to do that at no fee if they were requested?

M5. CARTER W have offered it to them
yes.

MR, PERRONE: Ckay. M last question on
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t he muni ci pal antennas; hypothetically if you did have to
attach muni ci pal antennas, how would you do that with

this tower design?

MR. CENTORE: | guess it would all depend
on the type of antenna. If it were sone sort of a dish,
it could be nounted internal. |If it were a whip antenna,

it would have to have sonme sort of external nounting
woul d t hi nk.

MR. PERRONE: Alright. Have any ot her
carriers expressed an interest in that additional spot?

M5. CARTER  Yes. A -- excuse ne -- AT&T
has expressed an interest and intervened in this docket.

MR. PERRONE: Ckay. Have any ot her
carriers besides AT&T though?

M5. CARTER  No.

MR. PERRONE: Ckay. Wuld Cellco access
the site in a simlar manner as we found in the field
review, |like would the trucks cone in the main entrance
and right up that driveway? Wuld the general path of
access be like that?

MR CENTORE: Yes.

MR. PERRONE: Ckay. How often do
technicians visit the site for maintenance purposes?

What woul d you expect, about how often?
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MR CENTORE: Once a nonth.

MR. PERRONE: Ckay. Also in the site
plans | saw -- it nentioned a garden wall. Wat woul d
that be nade of ? Wat would it [ook Iike?

MR CENTORE: It would be constructed of

brick masonry to match the base portion of the new tower

structure.

MR. PERRONE: Ckay. How tall would that
be roughl y?

MR. CENTORE: |I'mgoing to estinmate six to
ei ght feet.

MR. PERRONE: Ckay. And lastly, | was
| ooking at the architectural rendering and | see a circle
kind of below the bal cony area. Wuld that be a bl ank
circle or like a non-functional clock face?

MR CENTORE: |It’s actually going to be a
functional clock. And the nunbers -- we’'re working with
t he school to have them done in sign | anguage.

MR. PERRONE: Ckay. And lastly, would the
clock itself be illum nated?

MR, CENTORE: That’s sonething we're
working with the school’s architect. Their wish is to
have it illum nated.

MR. PERRONE: Ckay. Thank you. That’s
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all 1 have.

CHAI RVAN STEIN.  Thank you. Professor
Tai t.

MR COLIN C. TAIT: No questions.

CHAI RVAN STEIN: M. Ashton.

MR PHLIP T. ASHTON Is the clock going
to be --

COURT REPORTER:  Your m crophone pl ease.

MR. ASHTON: |I'msorry. [Is the clock
going to be Bulova, Tinex, or Longuine -- (laughter) --

MR. CENTORE: W don't --

MR ASHTON. That's it.

CHAI RVAN STEIN. Dr. Bell.

DR. BARBARA C. BELL: Thank you, M.
Chai r.

The generator, | just noticed that this is
a different type of generator than we’'re usually
presented with. So ny question is, is this sonething
entirely new or do you always do this for sites, rooftop
sites or whatever, where you have a gas |ine nearby?

MR. CENTORE: If it’s a rooftop facility,
we tie into the gas line when it’s avail abl e.

DR BELL: So --

MR. CENTORE: Very rarely do we have that
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opportunity on the raw land sites that we’'re invol ved
wi th here.

DR BELL: Yeah. Thank you. Thank you,
M. Chair, that’s ny only question

CHAI RVAN STEIN:. M. Hannon -- oh -- I'm

j ust skipping around, just seeing if you guys are awake -

- (laughter) -- go ahead.
MR. ROBERT HANNON: | just have one
guestion. In terns of what | was reading about how this

has gone through the Town of West Hartford approval, has
t here been erosion and sedi nentation control and things
i ke that subject to this particular part of the

devel opnent approved by the town or is that sonething
that you woul d be doi ng?

MR CENTORE: That woul d be handl ed as
part of the D&M pl an revi ew process. W have not -- we
have not submtted anything to the town specific to this
proj ect.

MR. HANNON: | was just curious if it was
included in part -- as part of sort of the entire site
devel opnment for the school and everything else. That's
why - -

MR. CENTORE: That -- that portion of the

proj ect had al ready been approved --
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MR. HANNON: Ckay --

MR CENTORE: -- through the process
before this cane on board.

MR. HANNON: (Ckay, thank you.

CHAl RVAN STEIN:  Director Caron.

MR. M CHAEL CARON. Thank you, M.
Chairman. | have no questions.

CHAl RVAN STEIN:  Senat or Mur phy.

MR JAMES J. MJURPHY, JR : Wen we were
out on the field reviewtoday, | realize it’'s now up on
the berm and | believe you indicated, M. Centore, that
it’s 30 feet higher than the site down bel ow where the
building is, where you currently are. 1s that correct?

MR CENTORE: That’'s correct. |It’s
approximately 30 feet --

COURT REPORTER M crophone pl ease.

MR. CENTORE: It’s approximately 30 feet.
It’s about 28 feet the grade differential from--

MR MJRPHY: That’'s -- so the question
that | want to fix in my own mnd is in |ooking at the
material, the above grade |ocation of the tower antennas
is slightly I ower than where they currently are because -
- | hear the 30 feet different or 28 --

MR. CENTORE: The --
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MR, MJRPHY: -- into the atnosphere the
antennas are really a little bit higher --

MR. CENTORE: The --

MR MJURPHY: -- in the new situation?

MR. CENTORE: The -- if we base everything
above nean sea |evel --

MR MJRPHY: Yeah --

MR. CENTORE: -- the existing antennas the
way they’' re configured, both AT&T and Verizon, are -- are
vertically stacked. They have two -- two antennas, one

above the other in each of their sectors. And those
antennas are at 202.8 -- I’'mgoing to round them off --
203 feet above nean sea | evel and 208 feet above nean sea
| evel . That’s what exists today.

On the -- on the new tower, what is being
proposed is Verizon would have antennas at 215 feet above
nmean sea | evel and 225 feet above nean sea level. And a
sl ot has been provided for AT&T at 206 feet above nean
sea | evel

MR. MJRPHY: (Ckay. So then they're
actually slightly higher --

MR CENTORE: Yeah.

MR. MJRPHY: That’s what | didn't gather

until today. | have nothing else, M. Chairman.
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CHAI RVAN STEIN. M. Lynch.

MR DANIEL P. LYNCH, JR: Follow ng up on
t he sane thought as Senator Murphy, | -- | thought AT&T
was going to be above Verizon, 206 or bel ow?

MR CENTORE: The 206 is bel ow Verizon

MR LYNCH  And when we were out doing the
field review, M. Roberts said that there would basically
be -- the cupola up front and cupola in back woul d
basically be the sane | evel, but --

MR. CENTORE: The --

MR LYNCH -- that 30 feet difference,
doesn’t it have to be higher?

MR CENTORE: It doesn't -- we were able
to mai ntain the same hei ght because you’' ve got a whole
buil ding that that other structure is sitting on. But
the -- the overall height of the cupola proposed and the
existing are at the sane -- at the sane el evati on above
mean sea | evel

MR LYNCH  You' re |osing ne because
there’s a 30-foot difference. Doesn't one have to be
hi gher or | ower?

MR. CENTORE: No -- yeah -- yes, it’'s the
same -- it’s the sane hei ght above grade level, so --

MR. LYNCH  That part | got --
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MR CENTORE: -- so yes, there’s going to
be a differential in height of about 30 feet.

MR. LYNCH  Thank you. And just sonething
|’ ve been -- a question |’ve been asking for a couple of
years now and | noticed that you referred to residences
that are in the -- I'’mon page 4 of the -- Set 1 of the
interrogatories and -- 13,000 residences in this area are
-- what is your priority now, to cover these 13,000
residences with your -- you know, with all your data
prograns that you charge 30 dollars a nonth for, or are
you still -- (laughter) -- are you still concerned with
that quarter-mle gap that | drive through in three
seconds in Farmngton or -- or anything like that -- what
-- what are your priorities?

MR. BRAUER Well| the -- the priority with
this site is obviously to -- at the very least to try to
mai ntai n what footprint we have now And this area of
West Hartford within the possible footprint of this site,
having 13,000 residents is -- it represents a significant
capacity demand, which is what our priority is, to
basi cally cover what we cover now.

MR LYNCH | just wanted to get that on
the record, that’'s all. Thank you, M. Chairman.

MR LIBERTINE: M. Chairman, since that
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el evation issue canme up, |I’'d like to point out that there
is anodification that 1'd like to make to -- behind Tab
9, the text of the visual report, | had actually -- on

the | ast page in the conclusion had nade the statenent
that the cupola’ s elevation would remain within 20 feet
of current conditions. |’'d |ike to have that changed to
30 just so it’s consistent. That was either a typo or |
may have msinterpreted the site plan el evations.

CHAI RVAN STEIN: Al right, thank you. |
just have -- | guess it’s a question -- the -- the shared
use of the generator, is that going to be, from your
standpoint, a trend in the future or is this an
exception?

MR CENTORE: | would -- | would say that
this is an exception only because of the limtation of
space within the building where it’s not -- it’s not
somet hing that each carrier could bring in a generator
based on the limted footprint that we have. So what
Verizon is doing is creating a space for a generator that
all the carriers within that structure could share.
Whereas when we're on a raw land facility or an outdoor
site, each carrier is developing their own equi pnent
shel ter and generator.

CHAI RVAN STEIN. |Is there any downside to
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doing it this way?

MR CENTORE: No. It’'s -- it's only a
matter of how the carriers work out how they share that
generator and the size of the generator and --

CHAI RVAN STEIN:  Well |I'mjust obviously
curious because sonehow they’ ve nmanaged to figure out how
todo it inthis case. And it is of interest | think to
this Siting Council that it apparently is doabl e.

MR. LYNCH M. Chairnman.

CHAl RVAN STEIN:  Yes, M. Lynch.

MR LYNCH.  You tweaked anot her question
that | had. Does the school have its own backup power

facility, either a generator or sonme --

MR, CENTORE: | believe they do because |
saw one on the drive out. It was right to the right
along -- adjacent to the new building that’ s being

constructed there’s a brand new generator sitting out
t here.

MR. LYNCH  And could this be sonething
| arge enough that you could actually tap into sonething
i ke that?

MR CENTORE: | think -- | don’t know that
it would be first of all, and it’s quite a bit of a run

fromwhere that generator is to where this equipnent
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building is, so --

MR LYNCH.  Thank you.

MR CENTORE: Yeah.

CHAl RVAN STEIN:  Okay, thank you. We'll
now go to cross-examnation if there is by AT&T.

Attorney Chiocchio? |'mnot sure where to put you, but -
- probably the podi um

M5. LUCTA CHHOCCHIG | have no questions.

CHAI RVAN STEIN:  Oh. That nakes that part
easy. kay -- but now we’'ll have a two-m nute break so
that the AT&T peopl e can change places with you.

(pause)

CHAI RVAN STEIN. W have the appearance of
the intervenor. Attorney Chiocchio, will you pl ease
present your w tness panel for the purposes of taking the
oat h.

M5. CHI OCCHI O  Thank you, Chairman.

Lucia Chiocchio with Cuddy and Feder on behalf of New
G ngular Wreless, AT&T. To ny left is M. Kenneth
Long, AT&T' s real estate site acquisition consultant.
And to ny right is M. Mchael Lawton, RF engineer for
AT&T.

CHAl RVAN STEIN:. W' || have the staff

attorney admnister the oath. Please rise.
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M5. BACHVAN: Pl ease raise your right
hand.

(Wher eupon, AT&T' s witness panel was duly
sworn in.)

M5. BACHVAN.  Thank you.

CHAI RVAN STEIN.  And will you -- | guess
continue by nunbering the exhibits and the filings you’ ve
made and maki ng any adm nistrative notices and verifying
t he exhibits.

M5. CHI OCCH O Thank you, Chairman. W
have three exhibits as listed in the hearing program
under Roman Nuneral 11, B-1, 2 and 3; AT&T's Response to
the Siting Council’s Interrogatories, Set 1, dated March
28th; Set 2, dated April 19th; and the resunes of our
W t nesses here.

CHAI RVAN STEIN: |Is there any objection?
Hearing and seeing none, will you continue by verifying
t he exhibits.

M5. CHOCCH O Thank you, Chairman. 1’11
ask ny witnesses a series of questions regarding the
exhibits identified. D d you prepare and help in the
preparation of the exhibits as identified? Ken?

MR, KENNETH LONG  Yes.

MB. CHOCCH G M ke?
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MR M CHAEL LAWON:  Yes.

M5. CHOCCH O Do you have any
corrections or clarifications to the information
contained in the identified exhibits?

MR LONG  No.

MR LAWON: No.

M5. CHHOCCHIO: Is the information
contained therein true and accurate to the best of your
bel i ef ?

MR LONG Yes, it is.

MR LAWON. Yes, it is.

M5. CHHOCCHI O And do you adopt this as
your testinony today in this proceedi ng?

MR LONG Yes, | do.

MR LAWON. Yes, | do.

M5. CHOCCH O W would ask that the
Counci | accept AT&T s exhibits.

CHAI RVAN STEIN: |Is there any objection?
Hearing and seei ng none, the exhibits are hereby
adm tted.

(Wher eupon, AT&T Exhibit Nos. 1, 2, and 3
were received into evidence as full exhibits.)

CHAl RVAN STEIN:. W' || now continue with

cross-exam nation. M. Perrone.
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MR. PERRONE: Thank you, M. Chairman.
understand that AT&T' s m nimumrequired height is 60
feet. At the proposed facility they’d be at 44 and a
half. Wile you are belowthe mninmum wll the 44 and a
hal f nmeet AT&T' s needs general ly?

MR LAWON It -- based -- as you can
see fromthe plots that are in the filings, it’s not the
same | evel of coverage, but it’'s better than no site in
that area. The existing site covers quite a bit of
traffic, and we'd like to continue to serve those
peopl e.

MR, PERRONE: And would you -- woul d you
be providing cellular, PCS, and LTE service?

MR LAWON:. On this site initially LTE -
- LTE exists on the existing site at Galludet Hall. And
LTE woul d be configured at the new site as well.

MR. PERRONE: So all three?

MR LAWON. Al three, yes.

MR. PERRONE: Yeah. How many ant ennas
woul d AT&T install?

MR. LAWION: | believe they -- three.

MR. PERRONE: Three, okay. Any tower
nmounted anplifiers or other equi pnment near the antennas?

MR LAWON There woul d be tower nounted
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anplifiers and renote radi o heads installed near the
ant ennas.

MR. PERRONE: Ckay. And those would all
be internal --

MR LAWON: Yes --

MR, PERRONE: -- so you wouldn’t see them
fromthe outside?

MR LAWION: Correct.

MR. PERRONE: Ckay. | have Cellco’ s power
density data. As for AT&T what is your percent MPE?

MR LAWION: |I'mnot certain we did that -
- I’"’mnot certain we provided that -- | don’t think we’ ve
got -- | didn't calculate that for this. | could --

MR, PERRONE: Could we get a power density
sheet perhaps as a late file --

MR LAWION. Sure --

MR PERRONE: -- the calculation, the
per cent age.

MR LAWON. Yeah. It -- | nean it would
be simlar to the existing facility --

MR PERRONE: Right --

MR LAWON. -- as well as within the
standards ny expectation would be, but w thout doing the

calculations, | can't give you an exact figure.
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MR PERRONE: Yeah. And -- let’s see what
el se -- do you know approxi mately the cost of AT&T' s co-
| ocati on project?

MR LONG To ny know edge, it would be
approximately half of the building costs, which is five
hundred thousand dollars for AT&T.

MR. PERRONE: Ckay. Thank you. That’s

all 1 have.

CHAI RVAN STEIN.  Thank you. Professor
Tai t.

MR. TAIT: No questions.

CHAl RVAN STEIN: M. Ashton.

MR ASHTON: | shoul d have asked M.
Centore --

COURT REPORTER M crophone pl ease.

MR ASHTON: Thanks, Gail. | should have
asked M. Centore, but M. Lawton, let ne try it on you.
What is the load that you re putting on the energency
gener ator?

MR LAWON. I'mafraid | don't know the
answer to that question.

MR ASHTON: M. Long, do you -- it's a
nystery, huh?

MR. LONG Unfortunately, | don’'t know
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ei ther.

MR. ASHTON: Maybe you coul d throw t hat
into a paragraph in the late file. Thank you, that’s
all.

CHAI RVAN STEIN.  Dr. Bell.

DR BELL: Thank you, M. Chair. M.

Lawt on, does the fact that you re accepting | ower
coverage here nean that you're going to need another
tower in the area because the coverage maps do show
gaps?

MR. LAWION: Based on the existing
condi tions, assumng that the clock tower were granted,
AT&T woul dn’t at this point have a plan to be | ooking for
an additional site. There' s nothing funded at this point
in the area other than the clock tower at -- or at the
school for the deaf.

DR BELL: So even -- you’'re not even
specul ating at the nonent, just nothing is funded, so
that’'s it?

MR, LAWION. That’'s correct, yeah. | nean
it’s -- it’s hard to tell what happens, you know, a year
two years, or five years fromnow, but at this point
there’s no plan.

DR BELL: GCkay. And on the materials
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that you submtted in the responses to the Council’s
questions, you updated information having to do with the
popul ation, the nunber of people being covered and the

area being covered. So I'mtrying to figure out what was

the new information -- given that this -- the information
isn’t custoner based -- you're just going by the nunber
of peopl e by census bl ocks and by coverage, correct -- am

| correct on that so far?

MR. LAWION: That's correct.

DR BELL: GCkay. So if | just go by that,
| can’t quite understand what new i nformation canme in
that was an update?

MR, LAWION: It's -- the second set of
popul ation in area were devel oped using map info and
using the current area and popul ation cal cul ati ons
contained within that. It’s -- it’s nore current
information | believe than what was used for the first -

DR BELL: Fromthe census?

MR. LAWION: Yeah, the census.

DR BELL: Onh, | see. Ckay -- because the
current site was devel oped quite sone tinme ago, yeah

MR, LAWON: Correct.

DR BELL: GCkay. Thank you very much.
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Those are ny questions, M. Chair.

CHAl RVAN STEIN: Director Caron.

MR. CARON: (Indiscernible) --

CHAI RVAN STEIN. M. Hannon --

COURT REPORTER. M crophone pl ease.

MR. CARON: | have no questions, M.
Chai rman, thank you

CHAI RVAN STEIN: M. Hannon

MR, HANNON: | do have one question.
Looking at the response to the Siting Council’s
interrogatories, if I’'mreading this correctly, the
current centerline height of the unit is 76 feet at grade
level. And then | believe at the proposed location it’s
44 feet, but we're also tal king about an el evation hei ght
that’s like 28 feet or 30 feet higher. So isn't it

actually a little bit higher than what you currently

have?

MR LAWION: | don’t believe that that’'s
correct. | believe that it’'s actually a little bit
| ower, but --

MR, HANNON: Ckay -- maybe a coupl e of
feet then -- but it is very close to what you currently
have?

MR LAWON It is. It's -- it's set back
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alittle further fromthe two roads, the two nmai n roads
that go through there --
MR. HANNON: Ckay --

MR LAWION. -- soit’'s less ideally
| ocat ed.

MR, HANNON: Ckay. Thank you.

CHAl RVAN STEIN:  Senat or Mur phy.

MR MJURPHY: In follow up to that
question, I'd really like you to give us a response as to

whet her or not it is above or bel ow because again ny
calculations fromwhat | put down in reading the
application and showi ng where you are on the diagram as
to the proposed site plan, there’s a very small
differential in feet above ground | evel as you go down.
And it seens to ne fromwhat M. Centore said about the
30 feet, you would be up. And in reference to the radio
frequency, | think Verizon did your homework for you, and
it’s in Tab 12, for the -- for both carriers, and it
comes to 42.54 between the two. But |1’'d appreciate it if
you d indicate to us whether or not this is in fact above
sea |l evel, higher in atnosphere or |ower in atnosphere in
the late filing.

MR LAWION: W' |l do that.

MR, MJURPHY: Thank you.
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CHAI RVAN STEIN. M. Lynch.

MR. LYNCH  Just one question, M.
Chairman. On the -- on the interrogatories, No. 13, it
states that Verizon and AT&T are exploring the
devel opnent of a shared generator, alright. Has that
devel opnent been resolved? Are you going to share the
gener ator?

MR LONG That's still in the negotiation
process at this point. W'’'re -- Verizon has proposed a
shared generator and we’'d be under this --

MR LYNCH Wiy woul d you not be -- why
woul d you not be in favor of --

MR LONG W just -- it’s not that we're
not in favor in this Ilimted set of circunstances, we
just don’t have an agreenent in place yet to share the
generator.

MR LYNCH.  Thank you.

CHAI RVAN STEIN:  Any ot her questions?

COURT REPORTER. One nonent pl ease.

(pause - tape change)

CHAl RVAN STEIN: W' re back? W' re okay?
kay. Attorney Baldwin, do you have any questions?

MR, BALDWN. No questions.

CHAI RVAN STEIN:  Thank you. The Counci |
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now recess until 7:00 p.m, at which tinme we’l|

commence the public hearing.

(Wher eupon,

t he hearing adjourned at 3:40
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